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Frank Katsanevas EDP Reference: S-02188.LOA.001 Gosford
SH Gosford Residential Pty Ltd email: enquiries@edp-au.com

web: www.edp-au.com
Office: +61 2 8484 5810

27 April 2022

Central Coast Quarter — Concept SSDA Modification

Dear Frank,

SH Gosford Residential Pty Ltd (St Hilliers) engaged EDP Consultants Pty Ltd (EDP) to review the proposed Concept State
Significant Development Application (SSDA) Modification for the Master Plan of 26-30 Mann Street, Gosford NSWV (the site),
in relation to a proposed additional basement level.

Previous investigations reviewed in preparation of this letter include:

=  Updated Detailed Site Investigation, 26-30 Mann Street, Gosford NSV, SH Gosford Residential Pty Ltd, EDP Consultants
Pty Ltd, April 2021, S-02188.DSI.001 V3 (EDP 2021a).

= Acid Sulfate Soils Management Plan, 26-30 Mann Street, Gosford NSW, SH Gosford Residential Pty Ltd, EDP Consultants
Pty Ltd, August 2021, S-02188.ASSMP.001 V3 (EDP 2021b).

= Geotechnical Investigation, 32 Mann Street, Gosford NSW, St Hilliers Property Pty Ltd, Douglas Partners, June 2017,
83186.00 (DP 2017).

In consideration of the suitability of the site for the proposed basement, EDP has considered the following key factors:

=  Proposed basement excavation depth.

=  Extent of known contamination.

= Depth to permanent water table.

Proposed basement excavation depth

Based on information provided by St Hilliers, the proposed basement will require excavation to the depth of -2.6 m Relative
Level (mRL).

Extent of known contamination

Based on the review of EDP 20213, 20 shallow test pits to target depth of 1.5 meters below ground level (mbgl) and 5 deeper
bore holes (to 5 mbgl) were excavated across the site. The logs noted the presence of fill materials reported to range in depth
from 0.5-1.5 mbgl. Below this fill layer, natural sand was recorded in all investigation locations.

The investigation report is considered suitable to characterise and delineate contamination at the site, and no further
assessment of contamination is required for the proposed basement.

Depth to permanent water table

Based on the review DP 2017, groundwater was observed at a depth of 1.5 mbgl (~1.2 mRL). Some variability in groundwater
depth is expected, and as an unconfined aquifer the water level is expected to be impacted by rainfall. The distance from
Brisbane Water and construction of Central Coast Highway is expected to result in negligible tidal influence.
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Discussion

EDP considers the investigation reports suitable to inform the feasibility of the proposed additional basement level. The
proposed excavation to a depth of -2.6 mRL will result in the generation of additional surplus natural sand/sediment that will
require management under the ASSMP (EDP 2021b). The depth to groundwater (~1.2 mRL) will likely require the basement
to be tanked to prevent ingress. A tanked basement will not impact on any acid sulfate soils remaining in contact with the
basement walls and floor following the implementation of the ASSMP. Careful management during construction dewatering will
be required in accordance with the ASSMP.

EDP concludes that the additional proposed basement is feasible and practical following the completion of the detailed design
phase.

Should you have any queries please feel free to contact the undersigned on 0419 602 448.

Yours sincerely

%

Ryan Jacka
Principal Environmental Consultant
Certified Environmental Practitioner

EDP Consultants Pty Ltd
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Limitations

This Report has been prepared by EDP Consultants Pty Ltd (EDP) for the client. The report may only be used and relied on by the client.
This report must not be copied to, used by, or relied on by any person other than the client or altered, amended or abbreviated, issued in
part or issued incomplete without the prior written consent of EDP.

This report may only be used for the purpose described in this report (and must not be used for any other purpose).

EDP and its workers otherwise expressly disclaim responsibility to any person other than the client arising from or in connection with this
Report. To the maximum extent permitted by law, all implied warranties and conditions in relation to the services provided by EDP and
the Report are excluded unless they are expressly stated to apply in this Report.

The services undertaken by EDP in connection with preparing this Report were limited to those specifically detailed in the this Report. The
opinions, conclusions and any recommendations in this Report are based on the inspection findings and reviewed documentation only.
Subject to the paragraphs in this section of the Report, the opinions, conclusions and any recommendations in this Report are based on
conditions encountered and information reviewed at the time of preparation.

Please note that subsequent to the date of this report, works or site conditions may have resulted in changes to the status of any identified
materials, which should have been documented and provided to EDP as a supplement to this report.

The data and advice provided herein relate only to the project and structures described in the Report and must be reviewed by a competent
professional before being used for any other purpose. EDP accepts no responsibility for other use of the data.

Where a third party conducted survey work, reports (such as laboratory reports) or verbal information that has been relied upon, the
data are included and used in the form provided by others. The responsibility for the accuracy of such data remains with the original
entity and not with EDP.

EDP expressly disclaims responsibility for any error in, or omission from, this Report arising from or in connection with any of the
Assumptions above being incorrect.
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